

Case study

“MODIFIABLE HYPERKALEMIA WITH TIMELY RECOGNITION”- BETA BLOCKER INDUCED

ABSTRACT

This case report describes the rarest possibility of drug induced hyperkalemia with beta blockers (metoprolol). In medline citations only 2 cases were reported as metoprolol induced hyperkalemia in diabetes patients without renal insufficiency. In this case the patient is asymptomatic with T2DM, Sytemic Hypertension and with no known renal insufficiencies and the potassium value is ranging from 6 to 6.7 mmol/l. Evaluated and found no other abnormalities in laboratory investigations. Metoprolol succinate tablet is withdrawn the potassium value reaches to normal range in very short period

Comment [dsy1]: Modify the abstract with correction of grammatical mistakes

Keywords: metoprolol succinate, hyperkalemia, betablocker induced

Comment [dsy2]: Rewrite the keywords

INTRODUCTION

As per literature this is the first case report on Metoprolol induced hyperkalemia from India .The incidence of hyperkalemia is increasing in the day today clinical practice. The most important cause in india is diabetes with renal insufficiency. Other causes are due to increased potassium supplements , drug induced hyperkalemia(preferably drug to drug interactions and drug induced itself). In this case we are inhancing a very important rarest possibility of hyperkalemia which due to betablocker induced in a T2DM with no renal insufficiency.

Comment [dsy3]: Modify the sentence by not claiming to be the first one

Comment [dsy4]: Rewrite the sentence

CASE REPORT

Comment [dsy5]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

A 63 year old lady with known history of T2DM, Dyslipidemia and Sytemic Hypertension came with asymptomatic hyperkalemia of 6.1 mmoles/ L . She was diabetic since 11 years with no features of renal insufficiency (serum creatinine : - 1.01, ultrasound abdomen no abnormalities detected and albuminurea (+). All other electrolytes values were within normal limits. Diabetes she is on oral hypoglycemic agents and on insulins (Basal and bolus). Antihypertensives were

Comment [dsy6]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy7]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

metoprolol succinate and cilnidipine. Since the patient is asymptomatic and no features of antihyperkalemic and arrhythmic changes on electrocardiogram. Initiated on evaluation, along with antihyperkalemic medications.

Comment [dsy8]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Detailed history taken and nil suggestive of increased intake of potassium supplements. Blood pressure values are on normal range with these medications and no history suggestive of decrease in urine output. Past history of palpitation and evaluated one year before with few atrial ectopics on electrocardiogram and normal echocardiography with good left ventricular function study. She was reviewed as outpatient basis frequently with antihyperkalemic measures and the elevated potassium values started reducing pattern, since when the antihyperkalemic measures are withheld the pattern of potassium raises again. The serum cortisol, ACTH, Aldosterone levels were within normal range. Finally the drug induced mechanism of betablockers suspected and discontinued metoprolol and increased the dose of cilnidipine for 1 week without antihyperkalemic measures. The repeat serum potassium level showed a decreasing pattern from the persistent levels of 6.5 to 4.8 and to 4 mmol/L in consecutive weeks.

Comment [dsy9]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy10]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy11]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

DISCUSSION

Hyperkalemia induced by betablockers are very rare and it has several mechanisms⁽¹⁾. The two main mechanisms are due to decrease in cellular uptake of potassium and suppression of aldosterone secretion from adrenal cortex.^(2,3) Diabetes and diabetes with renal failure cases has an increased risk for hyperkalemia.

Comment [dsy12]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy13]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes and also modify it

Comment [dsy14]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Hyperkalemia is also shown to be linked to propranolol-induced hyperkalemia, there is abrupt cell lysis with propranolol induced type with the release of intracellular potassium (4,5). Only 1-5 % of patients occurred hyperkalemia which is predominantly induced by adrenergic beta blocker and more are common with patients on non selective beta blockers such as carvedilol, propranolol and labetalol^(6,7,8). As per the study report of FDA 2018 evaluated the incidence of hyperkalemia in 24296 patients taking metoprolol succinate and found 287 patients with hyperkalemia⁽⁹⁾.

Comment [dsy15]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy16]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Comment [dsy17]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

CONCLUSION

Comment [dsy18]: Rewrite by correcting the grammatical mistakes

Patients with renal insufficiency and diabetes have more incidence of hyperkalemia. In this case patient is diabetes, hypertensive and with no renal insufficiency here the timely recognition of betablocker induced hyperkalemia can avoid unnecessary investigations and prevent severe complications like arrhythmias which may be fatal.

REFERENCES

1. **Schwartz AB, Cannon-Babb M.** Hyperkalemia due to drugs in diabetic patients. *Am Fam Physician.* 1989;**39**:225-31
2. **Gonick HC, Kleeman CR, Rubini ME, Maxwell MH.** Functional impairment in chronic renal disease. III. Studies of potassium excretion. *Am J Med Sci.* 1971;**261**:281-90.
3. **Allon M.** Hyperkalemia in end-stage renal disease: Mechanisms and management. *J Am Soc Nephrol.* 1995;**6**:1134-42.
4. **Pavlakovic H., Kietz S., Lauerer P.** Hyperkalemia complicating propranolol treatment of an infantile hemangioma. *Pediatrics.* 2010;**126**:e1589–e1593.
5. **Cavalli R., Buffon R.B., de Souza M.** Tumor lysis syndrome after propranolol therapy in ulcerative infantile hemangioma: rare complication or incidental finding? *Dermatology.* 2012;**224**:106–109.
6. **Nowicki M, Mischczak-Kuban J.** Nonselective betaadrenergic blockade augments fasting hyperkalemia in hemodialysis patients. *Nephron* 2002;**91**:222-7.
7. **Clausen T.** Hormonal and pharmacological modification of plasma potassium homeostasis. *Fundam Clin Pharmacol* 2010;**24**:595-605
8. **Liamis G, Milionis H, Elisaf M.** Blood pressure drug therapy and electrolyte disturbances. *Int J Clin Pract* 2008;**62**:1572-80
9. **Toprol and hyperkalemia.** From an FDA report May 2018, <https://www.ehealthme.com/ds/metoprolol-succinate/hyperkalemia/>

Comment [dsy19]: Rewrite the references as per the journal protocol and all the references should be written in the similar manner